City of Aurora

Executive Pay Plan

2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	4
GENERAL PROVISIONS	4
SECTION A. Application and Interpretation	
SECTION B. Definitions	4
SECTION C. Conversion of Base Annual Salary Rates	
SECTION D. Increases in Pay	
SECTION E. Decreases in Pay	
SECTION F. Transfer	
SECTION G. Payroll Records	
ARTICLE II	7
EXECUTIVE SERVICE	7
SECTION A. Schedule of Position Salary Grades	7
SECTION A. Schedule of Fosition Salary Grades	
·	
ARTICLE III	7
BENEFITS	7
SECTION A. General Provisions	7
SECTION B. Health Insurance	8
Employee Coverage	8
2. Premiums	
3. Dental	
4. Cafeteria Plan	
5. Unpaid Medical Leaves	
6. Disabled Employee Coverage	
7. Continued Health Coverage under COBRA	
SECTION C. Retiree Health Insurance	
Retired Employee Coverage	
2. Retiree Supplemental Coverage	
3. General Information	
SECTION D. Time Off	
1. Vacations	
Holidays Personal Days	
3. Telsonal Days	10
SECTION E. Paid Leaves of Absence	
1. Sick Leave	
2. Extended Disability	
3. Family Death	
4. Jury Duty	
5. Court Appearance/Depositions	
6. Maternity	
7. Paternity Leave	
SECTION F. On-The-Job-Injury	
SECTION F. Oil-The-300-injury SECTION G. Other Benefits	
1. Call Out Stipend.	
2. Conferences/Seminars	
3. Continuing Education	
4. Employee Assistance Program	
5. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)	
6. Interpreters Stipend	
7. Job Sharing	
21	
8. Life Insurance	23
9. Physical Examination	

10.	Professional Organization Memberships	24
	Separation Benefits	
	Telecommuting	
13.	Temporary Assignment	25
14.	Unpaid Leave	25
ARTICLE IV		
_		
DRUG AND ALCOHOL	TESTING POLICY	34

ARTICLE I

General Provisions

SECTION A. Application and Interpretation

Persons employed in positions listed in the salary schedules set forth herein shall be subject to the provisions of this Salary Plan and shall be paid at a step in the appropriate salary grade assigned to their respective positions. Such persons are "At Will" employees whose compensation and employment may be terminated with or without cause, and with or without notice, at any time, at the option of either the City or the employee. No property rights, employment contracts, or other contractual rights shall vest in any employee by the terms of said Plan or as a result of the adoption of this Plan.

It shall be the responsibility of each department director to ensure full compliance with all provisions of this Salary and Benefit Plan. The Director of Human Resources shall determine the proper interpretation and application of each provision of the Plan, which determination shall be final and binding on the department directors and employees affected thereby.

All benefits adopted hereunder are unilaterally granted by the City as voluntary benefits of qualifying employment and shall remain in effect as herein provided only until such further action by the City Council shall amend or abolish same. No property or contractual rights shall vest in any employee by the terms of said Plan or as a result of the adoption of this Plan. Provided, however, that upon separation from employment, qualifying employees shall be entitled only to the payment of benefits in accordance with the terms of any said Plan in effect at such time of separation.

SECTION B. Definitions

Adjustment in Salary – a change in salary rate as provided below in Sections E and F.

Base Salary – a dollar amount of pay specifically designated in the Schedule of Rates.

Comparable Positions – two or more positions that are in the same salary grade.

Creditable Service – active service in a position listed in the salary schedules as set forth herein. Creditable service shall not accrue during an unpaid leave, suspension or other unpaid absence in excess of thirty (30) calendar days. An employee returning to City employment with twelve (12) months of prior employment with the City shall receive credit for years of service for PTO purposes.

Creditable Service Date – the date an employee is placed in his/her current position (job). Creditable service date does not change unless specifically stated in the Plan.

Demotion – the assignment of an employee to a position with a lower salary grade than the former position.

Department/Division Head Approval – where stated in this Plan, approval must be obtained from the individual to whom the employee reports in the organization.

Entrance Salary – the initial base salary assigned to an employee on entering a position in the City service.

Full Time – employees who are normally scheduled to work thirty-five (35) hours or more per week.

Part Time – employees who are normally scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week, but less than thirty-five (35) hours per week.

Promotion – the appointment of an employee to a position with a higher salary grade than the former position.

Reallocation – the assignment of a different salary grade (either upward or downward) to a position as a result of significant changes in the labor market, in the assigned duties and responsibilities of the position, or in its relation to other positions.

Salary Range – the series of salary steps in a grade assigned to a position.

Transfer – the assignment of an employee to a position having the same salary grade as the former position.

SECTION C. Conversion of Base Annual Salary Rates

For purposes of converting a base annual salary to an amount applicable for one pay period, divide the base annual salary by twenty-six (26).

For purposes of converting a base annual salary to an hourly rate, divide the base annual salary by two thousand eighty (2,080).

SECTION D. Increases in Pay

All employees in Executive positions will be subject to annual performance appraisals.

- 1. Scheduled step increases will occur in 2016, pursuant to Exhibit B attached. Some pay grades may be subject to review and market analysis before implementation of the step increase.
- 2. Promotion -- Upon promotion, an employee shall be advanced to the lowest step in the new salary grade, which represents at least a full step increase in the former grade, unless otherwise authorized by the appointing authority and consent of the Director of

Human Resources. Such an increase shall become effective at the beginning of the payroll period during which such promotion occurs. Said effective date shall be the new creditable service date. When being promoted from the Non-Exempt Service to the Executive Service all accrued unused sick time earned while in the Non-exempt pay plan will be paid out in full at the Non-exempt rate of pay; sick time will be prorated for the remaining time for the current year; and any comp time earned will be paid out at the Non-exempt rate of pay.

- 3. Upward Reallocation -- If a position is assigned to a higher salary grade, the employee occupying the position shall be placed in the new grade, which represents the same or an increase in pay. The appointing authority and consent of the Director of Human Resources shall make determination of step placement in an upward reallocation. Such an increase shall become effective at the beginning of the payroll period during which said reallocation occurs. Creditable service date shall not be changed.
- 4. Corrective adjustment -- An employee may receive an upward adjustment in his/her base salary for the purpose of correcting a previous error or oversight.

SECTION E. Decreases in Pay

Employees occupying positions listed in the salary schedules set forth herein may have their salaries reduced as follows:

- 1. **Demotion for Cause or Voluntarily** -- Upon demotion, the employee's base salary shall be reduced to the step of the lower grade deemed appropriate by the appointing authority with the consent of the Director of Human Resources.
- 2. **Downward Reallocation** -- If a position is assigned to a lower salary grade, the employee's base salary shall be reduced to the final step of the lower grade if the current base is in excess thereof, or to the step in the lower salary grade which is closest to the current base salary unless otherwise determined by the appointing authority and consent of the Director of Human Resources.
- 3. **Corrective Adjustment** -- An employee may receive a downward adjustment in his/her base salary for the purpose of correcting a previous error or oversight.

SECTION F. Transfer

Upon the assignment of an employee to a position having the same salary grade as the former position, the employee's base salary and creditable service date will not be changed.

SECTION G. Payroll Records

Responsibility for maintaining the accuracy and records of the time off provisions as listed in this Plan rests solely with the individual completing the City payroll reporting form and the department/division head signing said form.

ARTICLE II

EXECUTIVE SERVICE

SECTION A. Schedule of Position Grades

*** See Attached Exhibit "A"***

SECTION B. Schedule of Salary Grades

*** See Attached Exhibit "B"***

ARTICLE III

BENEFITS

SECTION A. General Provisions

All benefits adopted hereunder are unilaterally granted by the City as voluntary benefits to qualifying employees and shall remain in effect as herein provided only until such further action of the City Council shall amend or abolish same. Benefits provided hereunder shall be granted to employees listed in Article II, unless otherwise specifically modified. No property rights, employment contracts, or other contractual rights shall vest in any employee by the terms of said Plan or as a result of the adoption of this Plan. Provided, however, that upon separation from employment, qualifying employees shall be entitled only to the payment of benefits in accordance with the terms of any said Plan in effect at such time of separation. The health insurance plan in effect when this Plan is ratified shall be continued for Executive employees during the term of this Plan; provided, however, the City reserves the right to make any changes, reductions, modifications, deletions, or improvements with respect to employee health insurance (including but not limited to changes in insurance carriers, insurance plans, benefit levels, deductibles, copayment levels, opting for self-insurance, etc.). Nothing in this Plan shall prevent the City from offering employees an alternative medical insurance plan with varying levels of benefits, deductibles and co-pays.

SECTION B. Health Insurance

1. Employee Coverage

The City presently has in force a complete group hospitalization insurance program (PPO), a Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) program and a High Deductible Health Plan/Health Savings Plan (HDHP/HSA), for eligible employees and their dependents. Benefits are effective the first day of the month following commencement of employment for those eligible employees selecting coverage. Eligible employees will have thirty-one (31) days from the commencement of employment to elect coverage. Eligible employees who do not select coverage within the designated thirty-one (31) day period will be barred from electing coverage until the next annual open enrollment period, unless dictated by law. In addition, employees having made an election regarding coverage shall be bound by their election until the next annual open enrollment period, unless dictated by law. (See the Summary Plan Description for further details.)

Should federal or state law mandate eligibility requirement changes, they shall be construed as included in this Plan.

2. Premiums

a. Group Health

For those eligible employees who have elected coverage under the group health insurance program, the City shall pay full and total premiums, except for the amounts specified below.

Commencing with payroll # 1 eligible employees in the Executive Service will be required to pay the category chosen (listed below) percentage of their gross annual earnings toward the premium for health insurance coverage, which rate and percentage may be amended from time to time. Such premium amounts are to be payable each pay period.

City of Aurora Medical Comprehensive Plan and HDHP

(Full & part time employees)

Employee 12.75% of Prevailing Premium Employee + Child 12.75% of Prevailing Premium Employee + Spouse 12.75% of Prevailing Premium Employee + Family 10% of Prevailing Premium

b. HMO

For those eligible employees who have elected to participate in a Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) in lieu of the aforesaid coverage, the percentage (listed below) would be in addition to any differential between the Employer's self-insured Plan and the HMO cost.

Blue Cross Blue Shield Blue Advantage (HMO) (Full & part time employees)

Employee	10% of Prevailing Premium
Employee + Child	10% of Prevailing Premium
Employee + Spouse	10% of Prevailing Premium
Employee + Family	10% of Prevailing Premium

c. High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) Health Savings Plan (HSA)

The individual deductible will be \$2,500, first individual in a family deductible will be \$2,600 and family deductible will be \$5,000. Employees that elect to participate in a HDHP and open a HSA will receive a City contribution for plan years 2015 and 2016 on or about January 1st based on the coverage option he/she selects as follows:

Coverage	Annual Contribution
Single	\$1,375
Employee plus child	
(ren)	\$1,875
Employee plus	
spouse	\$2,000
Family	\$3,000

For those employees that participate in both the first year and the second year the HDHP is in effect, in the second plan year the City will add an additional \$250 on or about January 1st to the employee's HSA.

Beginning with the third plan year the HDHP is in effect, and each year thereafter, the amount contributed by the City to an employee's HSA shall be equal to 40% of the health insurance cost savings, if any, achieved by virtue of employee participation in the HDHP (City-wide) in the prior plan year as determined by the plan administrator. The amount contributed to the employee's HSA in any given year will not fall outside of the following minimum and maximum ranges:

Coverage	Contribution Range	
Min		Max
Single		
\$500		\$1,925
Employee plus child (ren)/spouse \$750		\$2,800
Family \$1,000		\$4,200

The City will contribute the minimum HSA contribution per tier as shown above on or about January 1st and determine any additional HSA contribution, if any, by the end of the first quarter of the year.

d. Opt Out

The City will permit any or all employees who are currently enrolled in the City, HDHP or HMO Medical Plan to opt out, during open enrollment or in the event of a life change, of the City Plan, HDHP or HMO insurance plan, provided such employee provides proof of other health insurance at the time of opt out. During each full calendar month an employee is not covered by a City/HDHP/HMO insurance plan, the City will pay such employee the amount of \$200 per month. Any employee who opts out may apply to re-enroll at the next annual open enrollment period, pursuant to the City health insurance plan.

3. Dental

The City offers a dental insurance plan for eligible Executive personnel. Employees who choose to take dental insurance will be responsible for the full premium cost, and the cost may be changed from time to time. Dental Plan insurance information is available from the Human Resources Department.

4. Cafeteria Plan

Effective January 1, 1993, the City has established and maintained in effect a plan that excludes premium payments for health benefits from their gross income pursuant to Title 26 USC (125 (Section 125/Flexible Benefit Plan).

5. Unpaid Leaves

Employees on a personal, unpaid leave of absence for a period of more than thirty (30) days shall, prior to the leave and in writing to the Human Resources Department, either elect to continue their insurance at their normal contribution rate to be paid monthly or to have their insurance cease during the leave of absence.

6. Disabled Employee Coverage

The group insurance coverage provided above shall be made available at the current retiree rate, as adjusted from time to time, to any disabled employee who is granted a statutory disability pension on or after January 1, 1987. Failure to pay said premium within thirty (30) days of the due date shall result in termination of coverage. Every six (6) months, eligible disabled employees shall be requested to sign an affidavit stating they have not been eligible for medical benefits as a result of any new employment during the preceding six (6) months.

7. Continued Health Coverage under COBRA

The City shall provide continued health coverage under the provisions of P.L. 99-272, Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), subject to current federal law and any amendments, which may be annexed thereto. However, it is the responsibility

of the employee to make application for same through the City's Plan Administrator. Information regarding the Plan Administrator may be obtained through the Human Resources Department.

8. Compliance with Health Care Legislation.

Nothing herein shall limit the right of the City to unilaterally make any and all changes it deems necessary in its sole discretion to insure the insurance it provides pursuant to this Plan complies with the Affordable Care Act, and other state, federal or local insurance and/or health care reform legislation, to avoid being subject to fees (including but not limited to the employer shared responsibility assessable payment), fines, taxes or penalties, including, but not limited to, taxes/fees because employees are eligible to obtain subsidized or discounted insurance through an insurance exchange; or to avoid the coverage being subject to "Cadillac" taxes (a.k.a. the excise tax on high cost employer-sponsored health coverage).

SECTION C. Retiree Health Insurance

1. Retired Employee Coverage

Employees who retire from the City shall be considered qualified to continue group health and dental insurance coverage as provided for in the Summary Plan description, which is available in the Human Resources Department.

A retiring employee will be allowed to elect, at time of retirement and on a one-time only basis, the City dental and/or group health insurance plan. Eligibility for such coverage shall automatically cease upon the death of such retired employee. A surviving spouse is eligible to continue coverage provided that spouse is currently enrolled in the City's health plan as a dependent. For purposes of insurance coverage, the term "surviving spouse" shall mean the spouse of the employee at time of retirement only.

The retiring employee will be allowed, at the time of retirement and on a one-time basis only, to pre-pay up to two (2) years of insurance premiums at the current retiree rate. The two years shall consist of the year in which the employee retires and the following calendar year. However, if the employee retires in December the employee may purchase two full calendar years.

It is the responsibility of the retiree to pay the cost for such group health premium coverage: based on established percentage of premium rates for each level of coverage offered in the Plan, which may be adjusted from time to time.

Any increase in the annual contribution shall be capped at 20% of the previous year's annual contribution.

Such premiums may be adjusted from time to time; and such dental premium at one hundred percent (100%) of the prevailing rate, which the rate may be amended from time to time. Failure to pay said premiums will result in termination of coverage.

Once a retiree opts out or is discontinued by virtue of non-payment of the City's health insurance plan that action shall be final and said retiree shall not be allowed to retain coverage through the City again.

Upon attaining the age of 65, the health premium paid by the retiree will be frozen at whatever applicable premium level being paid at that time.

2. Retiree Supplemental Coverage

Retirees and their spouses who are currently covered by the City's group health plan and who reach Medicare eligibility shall be eligible for supplemental group health insurance coverage, as indicate in Sec. C1.

Such premiums may be adjusted from time to time. Failure to pay said premiums will result in termination of coverage.

Retirees and their spouses who are currently covered by the City's dental plan shall be eligible to continue dental coverage at one hundred percent (100%) of the prevailing rate, which rate may be amended from time to time.

A retired employee who, by virtue of new employment, becomes eligible for group health benefits as a result of employment, may choose to continue coverage with the City, provided such retiree must utilize his/her new employer's health insurance plan as primary coverage and the City's insurance shall only be secondary and supplemental to the retiree's new employer's insurance plan. The premium shall be the retiree's prevailing rate, which rate and percentage may be amended from time to time.

For further details on supplemental coverage, information is available from the Human Resources Department.

3. General Information

All retired employees eligible for insurance coverage under the terms of Sections C (1) and C (2) above shall be billed for their premiums. In the event the retiree fails to pay specified premiums to the City within thirty (30) days of the premium due date, his/her health/dental insurance coverage shall automatically be terminated by the City.

At the time of paying said premium, all eligible retirees shall be requested to sign an affidavit stating that they have not been eligible for group insurance benefits as a result of any new employment during the preceding six (6) months. A retiring employee may also elect to have health/dental insurance premiums deducted from his/her applicable pension check.

Once a retiree opts out or is discontinued by virtue of non-payment of the City's health insurance plan, the action shall be final and said retiree shall not be allowed to retain coverage through the City again.

Eligible part-time retirees may elect health insurance. Dental coverage premiums for single, family and/or dependent coverage shall be at the prevailing rate, which rate may be amended from time to time.

Retiree rates for employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 are as follows: Those retiring with twenty (20) or more years of City service credit will pay seventy five (75%) of the prevailing premium in retirement, as adjusted from time to time.

Those retiring with less than twenty (20) years of City service will pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the prevailing premium in retirement as adjusted from time to time.

Retiree rates for employees hired on or after January 1, 2010 are as follows: Those retiring with twenty (20) or more years of City service credit will pay forty percent (40%) of the prevailing premium in retirement, as adjusted from time to time.

Those retiring with less than twenty (20) years of City service will pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the prevailing premium in retirement as adjusted from time to time.

The City shall have the right to move retirees over to a separate retiree-only insurance plan substantially similar to the plan for active employees to the extent permitted by Illinois law.

SECTION D. Time Off

All full- time Executives are required to schedule and take a minimum of forty (40) hours of vacation time each year. Part- time employees minimum vacation time is based on the calculation of pro-rata hours scheduled per week.

All unused paid time off in excess of forty (40) hours or the pro-rata scheduled amount for part-time employees, as of December 31st, shall be paid at the straight time rate on or before the first payroll period in February of the following year.

1. Vacations

Paid vacation shall be granted in accordance with the following schedule based upon the service requirements indicated:

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS*

VACATION PERIOD

1 year through 4 years

80 hours per year

Beginning 5 years through 9 years	120 hours per year
Beginning 10 years through 16 years	168 hours per year
Beginning 17 years and thereafter	200 hours per year

An employee shall be allowed two (2) weeks of vacation during the calendar year in which he/she completes his/her first (1st) year of employment. Furthermore, an employee shall be permitted to take three (3) weeks' vacation during the calendar year in which he/she begins his/her fifth (5th) year of employment; four (4) weeks' vacation during the calendar year in which he/she begins his/her tenth (10th) year of employment, and five (5) weeks of vacation during the calendar year in which he/she begins his/her seventeenth (17th) year of employment.

Vacations shall be accrued at a rate of one twelfth for every calendar month of service. Vacations may be scheduled and taken at any time during the calendar year with advance approval, in writing, from the department/division head; provided, however that if an employee terminates for any reason after having taken more vacation time than they have accrued, his/her final check shall be reduced pro rata. Likewise, vacation which has been accrued but unused shall be paid pro rata upon termination. Vacation may not be used to extend employment.

Upon approval of vacation, written documentation shall be forwarded to the Human Resources Department. Vacation periods should be scheduled and taken in forty (40) hour increments or the pro-rata amount for part-time employees, but in no event less than two (2) hour increments.

Vacation periods shall be taken in the year accrued provided, however, if the full time employee has used forty (40) hours of vacation (for part-time employees the amount calculated based on their hours scheduled), then up to forty (40) hours for full time employees (for part-time employees the amount calculated based on their hours scheduled) may be carried over until February 28th if the employee gives written notification to the Human Resources Department by December 1st of the current year. The time must be used by February 28th of the succeeding year or such time will be paid out.

Part-Time Employee Vacation

Employees listed above who are regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week, but less than thirty-five (35), shall be granted vacation hours based on the calculation of hours worked per calendar year, beginning the year in which their first anniversary occurs. After five years, part-time employees shall be based on a calculation based of service requirements. Vacation scheduling shall be subject to the provisions of this Article. Part-time employees shall be entitled to vacation hours pro-rata based on their scheduled number of hours in a regular pay period.

*The City reserves the right to decrease service requirements in order to facilitate acquisition of needed personnel. Any change to such requirements is at the sole discretion of the Mayor.

Vacation Buy Back

Executive Service employees may request any amount of time to be paid at straight time in lieu of time off. Provided, however, all written requests for payment of vacation must be made to the Finance Department at least two weeks in advance of date of payment. Written documentation of the buy-back shall be forwarded to the Human Resources Department. Any unused vacation as of December 31st will be paid at the straight time, hourly rate on or before the first payroll period paid in February of the following year.

2. Holidays

a. Designated Holidays

Employees shall be allowed fifteen and one half (15.5) holidays per year; nine (9) of which shall be designated and established by resolution of the City Council.

The designated holidays are as follows:

New Year's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Friday after Thanksgiving
½ day Christmas Eve
Christmas Day

Veteran's Day ½ day New Year's Eve

Part-time employees shall be entitled to holiday pay pro-rata based upon their scheduled number of hours in a regular pay period.

b. Floating Holidays

The balance shall be deemed "floating holidays", which shall accrue at a rate of two (2) hours per pay period. Floating holidays may be scheduled and taken at any time during the calendar year with advance approval, in writing, from the department/division head; provided, however if an employee terminates for any reason after having taken more floating holidays than have accrued, his/her final check shall be reduced pro rata. Likewise, floating holidays accrued but unused shall be paid pro rata upon termination. Floating holidays may not be used to extend employment.

Floating holidays must be taken in no less than two (2) hour increments and shall not be carried over after December 31st of any calendar year. All unused floating holidays as of December 31st shall be paid at the straight time rate, on or before the first payroll period paid in February of the following year. Additional holidays, which may be authorized by City Council action, shall automatically be included in this section.

Holiday pay for both designated and floating holidays shall be computed at the employee's regular straight-time hourly rate of pay for the number of regular hours in the workday, up to a maximum of eight (8) hours.

Part-time Employees

Floating holidays must be taken in no less than two (2) hour increments. Floating holiday time shall accrue at the rate of one (1) hour per pay period, or pro-rated according to hours scheduled the previous year, whichever is greater. Employees shall not accrue floating holiday time for any period during which they have not worked seventy percent (70%) of the available working hours of that period. For purposes of this section, the "available working hours" shall be the regularly scheduled hours, which include any paid time off.

3. Personal Days

This benefit is provided to employees in the Executive Service inasmuch as such individuals are not entitled to overtime or compensatory time off; however, they are expected to work beyond the scope of the regular workday or workweek as necessary.

Employees shall accumulate one (1) Personal Day off in the calendar year in which the employee completes a full year of employment in the Executive Service, and one (1) day thereafter for each complete year of service, up to a maximum of seven (7) days.

Personal days off are subject to the prior approval of the department/division head in writing and scheduled so as not to interfere with the efficient operation of the department. Further, they should be taken in no less than two (2) hour increments. Personal days may not be used to extend employment. Such days do not accumulate, but must be used each year. Any unused Personal Days as of December 31st will be paid at the straight time, hourly rate on or before the first payroll period paid in February of the following year.

Part-time employees will earn personal days pro-rata based upon their scheduled number of hours in a regular payroll period.

SECTION E. Paid Leaves of Absence

Employees who are promoted into the Executive Service from any other classification within the City shall be paid for any compensatory balances and any eligible sick leave prior to the promotion. No compensatory time or sick time will be allowed to be carried over.

1. Sick Leave

Persons employed in the above qualifying positions may use up to a maximum of twelve (12) sick leave days within any calendar year. Unused days do not accumulate. At the end of the calendar year, employees may request pay for unused sick leave excluding the Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Chief, Police Chief and Deputy Police Chief. Request for pay must be received in writing by the Finance Department no later than December 15th or such sick leave shall automatically be credited to I.M.R.F. as described below. Employees who were granted Extended Disability/Sick leave during the year do not qualify for unused sick leave pay out. Said hours shall be compensated at one-hundred percent (100%) of the employee's straight time rate of pay; provided however, unused sick leave shall be paid upon separation from employment if employee leaves employment in good standing. Such time is pro-rated at pay off for the actual months worked less any hours used.

Effective January 1, 1998, employees retiring from the Executive Service shall be allowed to request and obtain up to one (1) year of I.M.R.F. (Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund) service credit for unused/unpaid Executive Sick Leave days per year, in accordance with I.M.R.F. established rules and regulations. Such allowances would be the total unused/unpaid sick leave recorded since January 1, 1979, less any sick leave used for both regular paid sick leave and extended disability paid sick leave time used.

Sick leave may be used for the purposes set forth below and shall be paid at the regular straight time, hourly rate of pay in effect for the employee's classification at the time the sick leave is being used.

(A) Personal Illness or Disability

Employees who have contracted or incurred and are suffering from any illness or disability which renders them unable to perform the duties of their position.

In order to receive any such sick leave payment, the employee must notify the appropriate department/division head that is charged with the responsibility for keeping a record of each such employee's use of sick leave. The department head or Director of Human Resources may require a physician's verification for absences in excess of five (5) consecutive days, or instances where the nature of the sickness or illness is unknown or requires verification. For the mutual protection of the employee and the City, an employee may be required to submit to a complete medical examination when performance has become seriously limited or weakened by injury or illness in order to determine whether the employee can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without reasonable accommodations.

(B) Family Illness or Disability

Employees shall be eligible to use their sick leave in the event of an illness or disability involving their spouse, parent or child (ren), which requires the employee's personal care and attendance.

Procedures not specifically set forth herein shall be governed by reference to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) of 1993 and the federal rules and regulations.

In the event of serious illness or surgery in the immediate family of an employee (as described above), the employee will be granted up to five (5) working days of leave of absence with pay in any one calendar year. Such leave approval shall be predicated upon comprehensive documentation on a form provided by the Employer from the patient's physician, and must be approved by both the Department Director and the Director of Human Resources. Such approval shall not be unreasonably denied.

(C) Medical and Dental Appointments

Employees shall be eligible to receive unused paid sick leave for absences due to the employee's attendance at medical and dental appointments; provided, however, that the employee should make every effort to schedule such appointments outside of normal working hours, if possible.

2. Extended Disability

In the event a single illness or non-duty related injury extends or is expected to extend beyond the sick leave provision above and is substantiated comprehensively by the employee's physician in writing including the anticipated date of return to work, to the Director of Human Resources, and a written request for extended illness has been submitted to and approved by the Mayor, then the employee shall continue to receive his/her full salary for up to one hundred thirty (130) business days.

Employees are not required to use accrued sick leave for a single illness, which turns into extended disability under this section if the illness is more than two weeks. Any employee who is on extended disability shall be required to submit a monthly status evaluation to the Director of Human Resources from his/her personal physician, providing information on projected return to work date. Failure to do so will result in termination of benefits.

The City shall have the right at any time to have the employee examined by an independent specialist to determine his/her fitness to return to work. As a result of the independent examination or the determination of the employee's personal physician, the City may instruct the employee to apply for disability to the applicable pension plan. The City will continue to pay the full salary until the employee is eligible for the applicable pension plan but, in no event, for more than one hundred thirty (130) business days.

3. Family Death

In the event of death in the immediate family of an employee (spouse, parents, step-parent, children, step-children, brother, sister, grandchildren, grandparents, or spouse's father, mother, brother, sister, grandparents) the employee shall be granted three (3) working days leave of absence with full pay. The Director of Human Resources may request proof of funeral attendance.

The following family members qualify for one (1) day death leave: employee's brother-in-law, employee's sister in-law, former step-parent or former step-child.

An additional day with full pay may be granted in case of death depending upon travel distance from the City. Additional days may be granted depending on circumstances documented in writing and approved by the Director of Human Resources. It is the intent of this provision to allow the employee, if required, to handle funeral arrangements and attend the funeral or memorial service in lieu of a funeral of listed immediate family member. The Human Resources Department may require proof of attendance at the funeral or memorial service.

An employee shall be granted four (4) hours off with pay to serve as a pallbearer for a deceased past or current employee of the City. Part- time employees will receive the prorata amount based on their hours worked per day.

4. Jury Duty

Employees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay at any time they are required to report for jury duty or jury service. To receive compensation, said employee must upon notification of jury duty, inform their supervisor the dates they may be required to serve; upon confirmation that said employee must serve; s/he must notify his/her supervisor. Upon completion of jury duty or court appearance involving official City duties, the employee must submit to the Finance Department/Payroll Division the amount of jury service fees received, less mileage and other expenses received, if applicable.

5. Court Appearance/Depositions

Employees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for court subpoenas or notices of depositions to testify as a witness or victim in a criminal or civil trial for the City.

6. Maternity

An employee who has given birth will be granted ten (10) working days of paid maternity leave. Such leave shall be taken immediately upon either the initiation of labor or birth of child. For purposes of this subsection upon the adoption of a child, the employee will be granted five (5) workdays paid leave. In addition, upon submission of proper documentation to Human Resources said employee may be granted up to an additional five (5) days of maternity leave for international adoptions.

7. Paternity Leave

The employee will be granted five (5) workdays of paid paternity leave. Such leave will be taken immediately upon either initiation of labor or birth of child. For purpose of this subsection such leave may be also taken immediately upon the adoption of a child. In addition, upon submission of proper documentation to Human Resources said employee may be granted up to an additional five (5) days of paternity leave for international adoptions.

8. Military Leave

An employee who enters into active service in the Armed Forces of the United States while in the service of the Employer shall be granted a leave of absence for the period of military service.

The City will follow Federal and State law regarding employees ordered to temporary or permanent military duty. The Human Resources Department will establish administrative procedures for implementing the applicable laws. Each party agrees to cooperate with any such employee in restructuring work schedules as might be necessary for an employee to meet the responsibility for temporary military duty such as monthly meetings and summer camp requirements.

SECTION F. On-The-Job-Injury

An employee who is disabled and off work as a result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his/her employment shall be paid his/her full salary as adjusted pursuant to law, for up to one hundred thirty (130) business days following the date of injury. During the period of such injury, provisions of the Illinois Workers' Compensation Act shall apply.

An employee who is injured during working hours shall report the injury to the Human Resources Department as soon as possible and in no event later than twenty-four (24) hours following the injury.

SECTION G. Other Benefits

1. Call Out Stipend

Due to the numerous call outs required in order to service the technical aspects and media relations aspects of the Police Department, the following positions will be paid a quarterly stipend of one thousand dollars (\$1,000), payable on payroll #6, 13, 20, and 26 (totaling \$4,000 for the year):

Director of Police Technical Services Police Systems Analyst Radio/Communications Specialist

Computer Network Administrator
Police Info Systems Coordinator
Media Relations Manager
Director of Communications and Public Information

Due to the call outs related to severe weather alerts and other emergencies, the following positions will be paid a quarterly stipend of five hundred dollars (\$500), payable on payroll #6, 13, 20, and 26 (totaling \$2,000 for the year):

Due to parks department snow operations and related severe weather call outs the following positions may be paid a stipend of five hundred dollars (\$500), payable on payroll #2, #4, #6 and #24 (totaling \$2,000 for the year) as authorized in writing by the Director of Public Property to Human Resources and Payroll:

Superintendent of Parks and Recreation Golf Maintenance Manager

If the employee receiving call out stipends outlined above leaves City employment, the stipend will be pro-rated accordingly on the final pay.

2. Conferences/Seminars

Attendance at conferences and seminars will be provided within budgetary constraints; however, approval for such attendance shall be at the sole discretion of the department head and/or Mayor. Such conferences/seminars shall only be approved for work-related purposes and all requests for approval must be submitted in writing. Travel time to and from conferences/seminars is not compensable time. Transportation to and from conferences/seminars (i.e.: mileage, train tickets, etc.) is compensable at the rate established by the City.

3. Education

A. Tuition Reimbursement. The City shall provide 50% tuition reimbursement toward individual courses, associates, bachelor and master degrees to the extent budgetary constraints allow.

Employees who wish to apply for the above, may request reimbursement of expenses as herein provided by submitting a written proposal through their Department Head to the Human Resource Department at least four (4) weeks prior to enrollment on forms provided for such purpose.

Approval of such proposal must be expressed in writing by the Director of Human Resources prior to enrollment. The following factors shall be considered in granting or denying the request:

- 1. That adequate funding is available to make the reimbursement as herein provided.
- 2. That the course(s) is/are approved by the employee's department head, related to the employee's job duties, and would enhance the employee's level of performance.
- 3. That the employee has performed satisfactorily in the department for at least twelve (12) continuous months prior to making the request.
- 4. That the employee signs an employment agreement which provides for repayment of tuition should they leave City employment pursuant to Section 3 (B).

In order to obtain reimbursement, the employee is required to submit original receipts for tuition, as well as written certification that the approved course(s) have been successfully completed with a grade of "C" or better; or, in the event of pass/fail courses, a "pass" is required.

B. Service Requirements

(1) Degree Program

An employee who was enrolled in a City-approved undergraduate degree, graduate degree or management program and received reimbursement as provided hereunder for the course(s) taken shall be required to work for the City one (1) additional year for each thirty (30) semester hours or equivalent completed. Such work requirement shall begin upon completion of degree or program. If the employee separates from service with the City, whether voluntarily or by discharge, prior to completion, the employee shall be required to pay back to the City the amount of reimbursement received for the last four (4) semesters or eight (8) quarters or six (6) terms of courses taken. Such work requirement shall begin upon completion of degree or program.

(2) Individual Courses

An employee who has received reimbursement for a City-approved course as provided herein shall be required to work for the City at least one (1) year following the submittal of the certification of completion for the last course(s) taken. In the event the employee separates from service with the City, whether voluntarily or by discharge, prior to completion of said one (1) year period, the employee shall be required to pay back to the City the amount of the reimbursement received.

C. Educational Incentive Bonus

No new participants will be accepted into the program, nor will individuals currently earning a bonus be eligible for an upgraded educational bonus.

Eligible employees in a position within the Executive Pay Plan shall receive an annual bonus to be paid on payroll #12 as per the following:

Associate Degree	\$ 300
Bachelor's Degree	\$ 600
Master's Degree or above	\$1200

4. Employee Assistance Program

The City has an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) available to all employees and their families. Such service provides up to three (3) confidential assessment sessions at no cost to the employee. The EAP is a voluntary program. The identity of employees utilizing the EAP is not divulged to the City.

Further information may be obtained from the Director of Human Resources or designee, or the program may be accessed directly by contacting Presence Mercy Medical Center EAP at (800) 327-0321, which is available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week.

5. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

The City complies with the requirements of the Federal Law for Family and Medical Leave (FMLA).

To be eligible for FMLA leave, an employee must have worked for the City for at least 12 months, and have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12 months prior to the start of the FMLA leave. An eligible employee can use up to a total of 12 work weeks of unpaid leave in a 12 month period for one or more of the following reasons:

- Birth of a son or daughter, and to care for the newborn child.
- For the placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care, and to care for the newly placed child.
- To care for an immediate family member with a serious health condition.
- When the employee is unable to work because of a serious health condition.

For further details on the City's procedures, please consult the City's Employee Handbook or contact the Human Resources Department.

6. Interpreters Stipend

The City will provide employees qualified as specified herein, with an \$800.00 annual stipend to be paid on payroll #12, for recognized languages as listed: Spanish, German, Polish, Czechoslovakian, Romanian, Hungarian and Sign Language for purposes of serving the public, performed while on duty. Employees, who receive such stipend, shall be required to use their interpretive skills whenever requested or required. A skills exam will be given by an independent third party, and will include oral interpretation skills as opposed to formal written skills. Additional languages will be considered on an as needed basis.

7. Job Sharing

All requests for Job Sharing will be evaluated based on the scope of the position and determined at the discretion of the Director of Human Resources.

8. Life Insurance

Employees who work at least twenty (20) hours per week are covered by a group life insurance policy as follows:

Policy Amount on Employee

Executive Service.... One times the employee's annual base salary

Such policy also has provisions for accidental death and dismemberment. There are no life insurance provisions for the spouse of a deceased retiree. Copies of the life insurance policy are available and may be obtained from the Human Resources Department.

9. Physical Examination

Full-time employees in the Executive Service are required to complete a physical examination as follows:

Upon appointment

Up to age 40 - Every five (5) years during the calendar quarter of the employee's birth date (ages 20, 25, 30, etc.)

Over age 40 - Every two (2) years during the calendar quarter of the employee's birth date (ages 42, 44, 46, etc.)

Over age 60 - Every year during the calendar quarter of the employee's birth date

The Human Resources Department will send letters to qualified employees once a year. The City shall bear the cost of a general examination (up to a maximum of \$500). Human Resources must be notified as to the dates of the exam to facilitate payment.

10. Professional Organization Memberships

The City encourages its Executive Service employees to become members of professional community organizations. Such memberships must have the prior approval of the department head to avoid overlapping and to maintain budgetary constraints. Requests for such must be made and approved in writing to the department head or the Mayor if the requesting employee is a department head.

11. Separation Benefits

An individual who is hired into the Executive Service on or after of January 1, 2014, will receive one (1) week of pay for every two (2) full years of service in the executive service, up to a maximum of fifteen (15) years.

An individual hired prior to January 1, 2014 who is employed in an Executive Service position shall receive, upon honorable termination from service with the City, a separation benefit based upon the number of years employed in the Executive Service. This benefit

provides for one (1) week of pay for each full year served in the Executive Service, up to a maximum of twenty-five (25 weeks).

At the time of retirement, an employee may choose a lump sum separation and accrued PTO payment included with the final check or choose to have their severance, accrued sick time and accrued PTO payment divided equally for up to three (3) months which shall include the month in which final pay is received, provided that the employee has given at least a ninety (90) day advance notice in writing.

In the event of death, the separation benefit shall be made to the beneficiary designated by the employee. If the employee does not choose a beneficiary, the benefit will be paid to the employee's estate.

Failure to give four (4) weeks written notice of resignation or retirement to the Mayor may result in the loss of two (2) weeks of severance benefit. It is understood that employees whose positions are covered in the Executive Service are at will employees and serve at the discretion of the Mayor. In the event of discharge for cause, no separation benefit shall be paid. Any exceptions will be at the discretion of the Mayor or designee.

12. Telecommuting

All requests for Telecommuting will be evaluated based on the scope of the position in accordance with the Telecommuting Policy and determined at the discretion of the Director of Human Resources.

13. Temporary Assignment

A current employee will be placed at step one of the position that is temporarily being filled. If the employee's rate of pay is higher than step one of the temporary position, the employee's rate of pay should be the next highest step of that temporary position. No temporary assignment will be made for less than five consecutive days. Any exceptions will be at the discretion of the Director of Human Resources.

14. Unpaid Leave

Employees are not eligible for unpaid leaves of absence until they have been employed for a continuous six (6) month period. To make application for an unpaid leave of absence, an employee must submit a written request to the Director of Human Resources. The request shall state the reason and the approximate length of time off requested. Unpaid leaves may not exceed six (6) months. If approved by the Mayor, the Human Resources Department shall furnish the employee with written authorization for the leave, with a copy to his/her department/division head.

Employees shall continue to accrue seniority for purposes of salary increase and benefits eligibility for a period of one (1) month only.

Prior to departing on an approved, unpaid leave of absence, which may last for over a month, employees shall be informed of Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

eligibility requirements so as to protect their eligibility status in the Fund, should they so desire.

Leaves of absence for a limited period not to exceed six (6) months may be granted upon application. Approval of the request is subject to the discretion of the appropriate authority.

APPENDIX V

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY

Section 1 Policy Statement

In the interests of employing persons who are fully fit and capable of performing their jobs, and for the safety and well-being of employees and residents, the Employer establishes this drug and alcohol testing program that will allow the Employer to take the necessary steps, including drug and/or alcohol testing, and which establishes when, where, how and why an individual employee may be tested, in order that the Employer may maintain a drug/alcohol free workplace.

Section 2 Definitions

Onium

A. <u>"Drug(s)"</u> shall mean any controlled substance listed in Chapter 56 1/2 of the Illinois Revised Statutes, known as the Controlled Substances Act, <u>or substances submitted in any federal controlled substances laws</u>, (such as those identified in Schedules I through V of Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act 921 U.S.C. section 812) and as further defined and revised in federal regulation at 21 C.F. R. Part 1308, in particular section 1308.11-1308.15 and 21 C.F.R. Parts 1300.01 and 1310), for which the person tested does not submit a valid predated prescription. Thus, the term "drug(s)" includes both abused prescription medications and illegal drugs. <u>In addition</u>, it includes "designer drugs" which may not be listed in the Controlled Substances Act but which have adverse effects on perception, judgment, memory or coordination. Drugs covered by this Policy, include, but are not necessarily limited to the following:

Opium	Psilocybin-Psilocin	Methaquatone
Morphine	MDA	Tranquilizer
Codeine	PCP	Cocaine
Heroin	Chloral Hydrate	Amphetamines
Meperidine	Methylphenidate	Phenmetrazine
Marijuana	Hash	LSD
Barbiturates	Hash Oil	Mescaline

Methaqualone

Glutethimide Crack Steroids

Synthetic/semisynthetic opiates, hydrocodone, oxycodone, fentanyl, oxymorphone, methadone,

Meperidine

Phencyclidine

Benzodiazepines

Methamphetamine

MDMA

- B. "<u>Impairment"</u> due to drugs and/or alcohol shall mean a condition in which the employee is unable to properly perform his/her duties due to the effects of a drug and/or alcohol in his/her body. Where impairment exists or, in the case of alcohol is presumed pursuant to Section 7 hereof, incapacity for duty shall be presumed.
- C. The term <u>"'drug abuse"</u> includes the use of any controlled substance which has not been legally prescribed and/or dispensed, or the use of a legally prescribed drug for which a valid, predated prescription has not been submitted as provided in this Policy, along with a listing of known side effects.
- **D.** The term "<u>designer drug</u>" is a term coined to describe psychoactive drugs which are created to get around existing drug laws, usually by modifying the molecular structure of existing drugs to varying degrees or less commonly by finding drugs with entirely different chemical structures that produce similar subjective effects to illegal recreational drugs.
- E. The term <u>"alcohol abuse"</u> means the use of alcohol on- or prior to duty, such that at any time during working hours, the level of alcohol indicated in Section 7 can be detected via blood/urine sample testing and thus the employee will be presumed to be impaired due to the use of alcohol.
- F. "<u>Positive Test Results"</u> shall mean a positive result on both a confirming test and initial screening test. If the initial test is positive, but the confirming test is negative, the test results will be deemed negative and no action will be taken. A positive confirming test result is one where the specimen tested contained alcohol, drug or drug metabolite concentrations at or above the concentration level specified in Sections 6 and 7.
- G. <u>"On Duty"/"Work Day"</u> shall mean during normal working hours, and includes "on call" and "standby" duty times, as well as overtime duty hours.

Section 3. Prohibitions

Employees shall be prohibited from:

- 1. Consuming or possessing illegal drugs at any time during or prior to the work day, on any of the Employer's premises or job sites, including all of the Employer's buildings, properties, vehicles and the employee's personal vehicle while engaged in the business of the Employer.
- 2. Possessing, using, selling, purchasing or delivering any illegal drug during the work day. (The Employer does not condone the off duty possession, use, sale, purchase or delivery of any illegal drug by an employee and may discipline any employee who engages in such conduct, up to and including termination.
- 3. Consuming or possessing alcohol at any time during the workday, on any of the employer's job sites, including all of the Employer's buildings, properties, vehicles and the employee's personal vehicle while engaged in the business of the Employer and/or at any time prior to the work day such that at any time during working hours, the level of alcohol indicated in Section 7 can be detected as provided in Section 2(d).
- 4. Failing to produce a valid pre-dated prescription for any medication that produces any known adverse side effect should the employee become impaired while on duty. Employees are encouraged to provide such notice to their Department Head if such prescription drug might cause impairment while on duty.

Violation of these prohibitions will result in progressive disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Section 4. The Administration of Tests

A. Informing Employees Regarding Drug and Alcohol Testing

All employees will be fully informed, in writing, of the Employer's drug and alcohol testing policy. Employees will be provided with information concerning the impact of the use of drugs/alcohol on job performance. In addition, the Employer will inform the employees of how the test is conducted, when the test will be conducted, what the test can determine, and the consequences of testing positive for drug/alcohol use. All newly hired employees will be provided with this information on their initial date of hire. No employee shall be tested unless this information has been provided to him/her.

B. When a Test May be Compelled

There shall be no across-the-board or random drug/alcohol testing of employees, except as otherwise provided herein. Where a Supervisor has reasonable suspicion that an employee is under the influence of drug(s)/ alcohol or there is evidence of impairment while on duty, that employee may be required to report for drug/alcohol testing. An employee also may be required to report for testing when the employee has suffered a workplace injury or has been involved in an accident resulting in damage to persons, property or vehicles. A drug test may be required when an

employee has been arrested or indicted for conduct involving illegal drug related activity, on- or off-duty.

When an employee is ordered to submit to testing, the employee may produce a valid, predated prescription, at which time the determination is made whether the test shall be ordered. Such production must occur at the time the testing order is given. The Director of Human Resources must confirm the reasonable suspicion of drug or alcohol abuse. The Employer shall arrange for a drug/ alcohol test. Refusal of an Employee to comply with the order for a drug/ alcohol screening will be cause for discipline up to and including discharge.

C. Reasonable Suspicion Standard

Reasonable suspicion exists if specified objective facts and circumstances warrant rational inferences that a person is abusing, in possession of, and/or is impaired due to alcohol and/or drug abuse. Reasonable suspicion will be based upon the following:

- 1. Observable phenomenon, such as direct observation of use, possession, and/or the evidence of individual symptoms of impairment resulting from drug or alcohol abuse; and/or
- 2. Information provided by an identifiable, reliable and credible source.

D. Order to Submit to Testing

When an employee is ordered to submit to testing, the Employer shall provide the employee with a written notice of the order as soon as reasonably possible. Such written notice shall be given not later than eight (8) hours following the order to test. The written notice shall set forth all of the objective facts and reasons for the order to test. A refusal to submit to such testing may subject the employee to discipline, up to and including discharge. Any employee who takes or does not take the test shall not be construed to have waived any objection or rights that he/she may have. When testing is ordered, the employee will be immediately removed from duty and placed on paid leave pending the receipt of results.

Section 5 Conduct of Tests

In conducting the testing herein specified, the Employer shall:

- A. Use only a clinical laboratory or hospital facility that is licensed pursuant to the Illinois Clinical Laboratory Act that is accredited by-DHHS or SAMHSA. [CHANGE -TA]
- B. Establish a chain of custody procedure consistent with DOT regulations for both the sample collection and testing that will ensure the integrity of the identity of each sample and test result.
- C. Provide the employee tested with an opportunity to have the additional sample tested by a SAMHSA-accredited clinical laboratory or hospital facility of the employee's choosing, at the

employee's own expense; provided the employee notifies the City of the desire to do so within ninety-six(96)) hours of receiving notification of positive test results.

- <u>D.</u> Require that the laboratory or hospital facility report to the Employer when a breath or urine sample is positive only if both the initial screening and confirmation tests are positive including for a particular drug, and the Medical Review Officer verifies the result (in a drug test situation). If any information concerning such testing or the results thereof be obtained inconsistent with the understanding expressed herein, the Employer shall not use such information in any manner or forum adverse to the employee's interest.
- E. Require that with regard to alcohol testing, for the purpose of determining whether the employee is under the influence of alcohol, test results showing an alcohol concentration of .02 or more based upon the grams of alcohol per 100 millimeters of blood be considered positive, and results showing an alcohol concentration of .0199 or less shall be considered negative.
- <u>F.</u>. Provide each employee tested with a copy of all information and reports received by the Employer in connection with the testing and the results;
- <u>G.</u> Ensure that no employee is subject to any adverse employment action except temporary reassignment or leave with pay during the pendency of any testing procedure. Any such reassignment or leave shall be immediately discontinued in the event of a negative test result, and all records of the testing procedure will be expunged from the employee's personnel files;
- <u>H.</u> The testing, results and circumstances requiring the testing are confidential and will be held in the highest degree of confidence.

Section 6. Drug Testing Standards

A. <u>Initial Screening Test Standards</u>

The following initial immunoassay test cutoff levels shall be the DHHS or SAMHSA standards in effect at the time of the testing. In the event DHHS or SAMHSA has no standards to be used when screening specimens to determine whether they are positive for the following ten (10) drugs/classes of drugs, then the following shall be used:

Initial Test Level

Amphetamines	. 1000 ng/ml
Barbiturates	300 ng/ml
Secobarbital	
Phenobarbital Butabarbital Benzodiazepines	. 1000 ng/ml

Propoxyphene 300 ng/ml

Confirmatory Test Level

Amphetamines 500 ng/ml Methamphetamine 500 ng/ml

Propoxyphene 200 ng/ml

C. Changes in Test Standards

The cutoff levels <u>and substances tested for as set forth above</u> may be amended during the term of this agreement, based on newly adopted DHHS or SAMHSA screening and confirmatory standards.

B. Breath Alcohol Testing

The City will test for the presence of alcohol through the use of a breathalyzer and the testing will be conducted in a private setting by trained breath alcohol technicians ("BATs") who are not City employees, using DOT-approved evidential breath testing devices ("EBTs") that display and print test results. A breathalyzer test result showing an alcohol concentration of .020 or more shall be considered positive, and results showing an alcohol concentration of .0199 or less shall be considered negative.

Section 7. Alcohol Test Standards

Impairment due to alcohol use/abuse shall be presumed upon a breath alcohol content of .02 or more.

Section 8. Voluntary Request for Assistance

The Employer shall take no adverse employment action against an employee who voluntarily seeks treatment, through the Employer's EAP Program, or through one of the City's health care providers and/or referrals, for an alcohol or drug related problem, other than that the Employer may place the employee on leave during treatment. However, the protection afforded by this Section shall not be available if the request follows an order to submit to testing, the pendency of an automatic order to submit to testing (i.e. post-accident), violation of Section 3 or if the employee acted in violation of rules of conduct which otherwise provide an independent basis for disciplinary action. The Employer shall make available through its Employee Assistance Program a means by which the employee may obtain referrals and treatment. All such requests shall be confidential. When undergoing treatment, employees shall be allowed to: 1) use accumulated sick leave; and/or 2) paid leave; and/or 3) be placed on unpaid leave; and/or 4) be transferred to a position for which he/she is fit, if available.

Section 9. Discipline

Employees who test positive for the presence of drugs or alcohol or otherwise violate this Article shall be subject to discipline up to and including discharge. To the extent the City does not discharge an employee, any lesser discipline shall be conditioned upon the employee agreeing to the following:

- a. The employee agreeing to appropriate treatment as determined by the physician(s) involved;
- b. The employee discontinues his use of illegal drugs or abuse of alcohol;
- c. The employee completes the course of treatment prescribed, including an "after-care" group for a period of twelve (12) months;
- d. The employee agrees to submit to random testing during hours of work, without loss of pay, during the period of "after-care".

Section 10. Insurance Coverage

The Employer shall provide health insurance, which may cover all or a portion of the cost of the EAP program. The insurance should provide for both outpatient and in-patient treatment depending on the appropriate course of action in each employee's case.

Section 11. Duty Assignment

If the nature of the EAP or treatment program allows the employee to continue to work during treatment, the Employer shall maintain the individual's previous employment status. If an employee participates in an in-patient program which precludes continued employment, the employee shall be granted a leave to do so. At the end of such leave, the employee shall be returned to his former position with no loss of seniority and accumulated benefits. An employee may use accumulated sickness or disability benefits during the period of his/her treatment leave.

Employees who voluntarily report to their Department Head that they are taking prescribed or over-the-counter medication that has adverse side effects which interfere with the employee's ability to perform his/her normal duties, may be temporarily reassigned with full pay to other duties, or be placed on sick leave, paid leave of absence, or unpaid leave of absence.

Section 12. Confidentiality of Test Results

The results of drug and alcohol tests will be disclosed to the person tested, the Department Head, the Director of Human Resources, the Mayor, and such other officials who by law have a need to know. Test results will not be disclosed externally except where required for disciplinary purposes or to defend against any grievances, unemployment or workers compensation claims, or other litigation. All records in this regard will be kept and maintained in the office of the Director of Human Resources.

EXHIBIT A SCHEDULE OF POSITION GRADES

	SALARY
POSITION	GRADE
Public Information Specialist	10
Administrative Assistant	11
Assistant Radio Communication	11
Cable TV Access Coordinator	11
Customer Relations Specialist	11
Golf Pro Manager	11
Neighborhood Resource Coordinator	11
Public Information Coordinator	11
Assistant Corporation Counsel I	12
Compliance Auditor	12
Director of Media Relations	12
Director-Curator of Public Arts	12
Downtown/Riverwalk Administrator	12
Human Resource Generalist	12
Manager of Animal Control	12
Management Assistant	12
Office Coordinator	12
Plan Examiner	12
Special Events Coordinator	12
Computer Network Administrator	13
Customer Relations Manager	13
Development Coordinator	13
Downtown Development Coordinator	13
Golf Maintenance Manager	13
Golf Operations Manager	13
IT Business Analyst	13
Management Analyst	13
Media Relations Manager	13
Neighborhood Program Coordinator	13

Police Systems Analyst	13
Radio Communications Specialist	13- 12
Senior Plan Examiner	13
Special Assistant for Development Facilitation	13
Special Events Manager	13
Zoo Manager	13
Assistant Director of Building and Permits	14
Assistant Chief of Staff	14
Assistant Corporation Counsel II	14
Assistant Director of Finance	14
Assistant Director of Human Resources	14
Assistant Superintendent of Water and Sewer	14
Assistant Superintendent of Water Production	14
Capital Improvement Program Manager	14
City Clerk	14
Information Systems Coordinator Police	
Department	14
IT Security Officer	14
Neighborhood Redevelopment Manager	14
Superintendent of MVPS	14
Superintendent of Parks & Recreation	14
Zoning Administrator	14
Property Standards Manager	14
Chief of Staff	15
Director of Building and Permits	15
Director of Community Relations and Public	
Information	15
Director of Economic Development	15
Director of Human Resources	15
Director of Management Information Systems	15
Director of Planning	15
Director of Police Technical Services	15
Director of Purchasing	15
Emergency Management Coordinator	15
Manager of Emergency Communication 911	15
Risk Manager	15

Superintendent of Central Services	15
Superintendent of Maintenance Services	15
Superintendent of Property Standards	15
Superintendent of Streets	15
Assistant City Engineer	16
Chief Administrative Services Officer	16
Chief Community Services Officer	16
Chief Development Services Officer	16
Chief Technology Officer	16
Corporation Counsel	16
Deputy Police Chief	16**
Deputy Fire Chief	16*
Director of Neighborhood Standards	16
Director of Public Properties	16
Director of Public Works/City Engineer	17
Chief Financial Officer/City Treasurer	17
Chief Management Officer	17
Superintendent of Water and Sewer	17
Superintendent of Water Production	17
Fire Chief	17*
Police Chief	17**

^{*} Subject to change resulting from AFD #99 Labor Agreement wage increase

^{**} Subject to change resulting from APPO Labor Agreement wage increase

EXHIBIT B
SCHEUDLE OF SALARY GRADES 2015
EXECUTIVE SERVICE

PAY	STEP 1		S	TEP 2	S	TEP-3	S	TEP-4	STEP 5		STEP 6		STEP 7	
GRADE	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual
E01	12.00	24,960.00	12.26	25,500.80	12.53	26,062.40	12.80	26,624.00	13.09	27,227.20	13.37	27,809.60	13.68	28,454.40
E02	12.60	26,208.00	12.88	26,790.40	13.17	27,393.60	13.46	27,996.80	13.74	28,579.20	14.06	29,244.80	14.36	29,868.80
E03	13.21	27,476.80	13.50	28,080.00	13.80	28,704.00	14.12	29,369.60	14.42	29,993.60	14.75	30,680.00	15.08	31,366.40
E04	13.86	28,828.80	14.18	29,494.40	14.50	30,160.00	14.82	30,825.60	15.15	31,512.00	15.48	32,198.40	15.86	32,988.80
E05	14.99	31,179.20	15.32	31,865.60	15.63	32,510.40	15.98	33,238.40	16.35	34,008.00	16.71	34,756.80	17.09	35,547.20
E06	16.13	33,550.40	16.48	34,278.40	16.83	35,006.40	17.22	35,817.60	17.61	36,628.80	17.99	37,419.20	18.38	38,230.40
E07	17.35	36,088.00	17.74	36,899.20	18.14	37,731.20	18.53	38,542.40	18.94	39,395.20	19.38	40,310.40	19.79	41,163.20
E08	18.69	38,875.20	19.10	39,728.00	19.52	40,601.60	19.96	41,516.80	20.40	42,432.00	20.86	43,388.80	21.31	44,324.80
E09	20.15	41,912.00	20.58	42,806.40	21.03	43,742.40	21.51	44,740.80	21.97	45,697.60	22.47	46,737.60	22.95	47,736.00
E10	21.64	45,011.20	22.12	46,009.60	22.62	47,049.60	23.12	48,089.60	23.66	49,212.80	24.19	50,315.20	24.71	51,396.80
E11	25.11	52,228.80	25.68	53,414.40	26.24	54,579.20	26.84	55,827.20	27.46	57,116.80	28.07	58,385.60	28.65	59,592.00
E12	29.12	60,569.60	29.79	61,963.20	30.44	63,315.20	31.11	64,708.80	31.80	66,144.00	32.53	67,662.40	33.24	69,139.20
E13	33.80	70,304.00	34.58	71,926.40	35.31	73,444.80	36.11	75,108.80	36.89	76,731.20	37.72	78,457.60	38.55	80,184.00
E14	39.21	81,556.80	40.09	83,387.20	40.96	85,196.80	41.89	87,131.20	42.78	88,982.40	43.74	90,979.20	44.70	92,976.00
E15	45.45	94,536.00	46.46	96,636.80	47.50	98,800.00	48.57	101,025.60	49.62	103,209.60	50.75	105,560.00	51.86	107,868.80
E16	53.53	111,342.40	54.72	113,817.60	55.94	116,355.20	57.21	118,996.80	58.45	121,576.00	59.77	124,321.60	61.08	127,046.40
E17	63.08	131,206.40	64.49	134,139.20	65.91	137,092.80	67.39	140,171.20	68.89	143,291.20	70.43	146,494.40	71.98	149,718.40

EXHIBIT B
SCHEUDLE OF SALARY GRADES 2015
EXECUTIVE SERVICE CONTINUED

	EXECUTIVE SERVICE CONTINUED											
PAY	STEP 8		S	TEP 9	ST	TEP 10	S	TEP 11	S	F EP 12	STEP 13	
GRADE	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual
E01	13.99	29,099.20	14.30	29,744.00	14.62	30,409.60	14.94	31,075.20	15.28	31,782.40	15.61	32,468.80
E02	14.68	30,534.40	15.01	31,220.80	15.35	31,928.00	15.68	32,614.40	16.04	33,363.20	16.40	34,112.00
E03	15.41	32,052.80	15.74	32,739.20	16.11	33,508.80	16.45	34,216.00	16.82	34,985.60	17.22	35,817.60
E04	16.22	33,737.60	16.56	34,444.80	16.93	35,214.40	17.29	35,963.20	17.68	36,774.40	18.07	37,585.60
E05	17.46	36,316.80	17.84	37,107.20	18.25	37,960.00	18.64	38,771.20	19.06	39,644.80	19.47	40,497.60
E06	18.80	39,104.00	19.22	39,977.60	19.64	40,851.20	20.05	41,704.00	20.51	42,660.80	20.96	43,596.80
E07	20.25	42,120.00	20.70	43,056.00	21.15	43,992.00	21.62	44,969.60	22.10	45,968.00	22.59	46,987.20
E08	21.78	45,302.40	22.28	46,342.40	22.78	47,382.40	23.28	48,422.40	23.80	49,504.00	24.33	50,606.40
E09	23.47	48,817.60	24.02	49,961.60	24.56	51,084.80	25.07	52,145.60	25.64	53,331.20	26.18	54,454.40
E10	25.28	52,582.40	25.81	53,684.80	26.39	54,891.20	26.97	56,097.60	27.59	57,387.20	28.19	58,635.20
E11	29.29	60,923.20	29.97	62,337.60	30.64	63,731.20	31.29	65,083.20	32.01	66,580.80	32.69	67,995.20
E12	34.00	70,720.00	34.72	72,217.60	35.50	73,840.00	36.30	75,504.00	37.12	77,209.60	37.94	78,915.20
E13	39.42	81,993.60	40.31	83,844.80	41.22	85,737.60	42.10	87,568.00	43.03	89,502.40	44.00	91,520.00
E14	45.71	95,076.80	46.70	97,136.00	47.75	99,320.00	48.82	101,545.60	49.91	103,812.80	51.00	106,080.00
E15	53.02	110,281.60	54.18	112,694.40	55.40	115,232.00	56.63	117,790.40	57.90	120,432.00	59.15	123,032.00
E16	62.46	129,916.80	63.82	132,745.60	65.26	135,740.80	66.70	138,736.00	68.20	141,856.00	69.72	145,017.60
E17	73.59	153,067.20	75.21	156,436.80	76.92	159,993.60	78.61	163,508.80	80.38	167,190.40	82.14	170,851.20

EXHIBIT B
SCHEUDLE OF SALARY GRADES 2016
EXECUTIVE SERVICE

PAY	S	ГЕР 1	STEP 2		STEP 3		STEP 4		STEP 5		STEP 6		STEP 7	
GRADE	Hourly	Annual												
E01	12.27	25,521.60	12.54	26,083.20	12.81	26,644.80	13.09	27,227.20	13.38	27,830.40	13.67	28,433.60	13.99	29,099.20
E02	12.88	26,790.40	13.17	27,393.60	13.47	28,017.60	13.76	28,620.80	14.05	29,224.00	14.38	29,910.40	14.68	30,534.40
E03	13.51	28,100.80	13.80	28,704.00	14.11	29,348.80	14.44	30,035.20	14.74	30,659.20	15.08	31,366.40	15.42	32,073.60
E04	14.17	29,473.60	14.50	30,160.00	14.83	30,846.40	15.15	31,512.00	15.49	32,219.20	15.83	32,926.40	16.22	33,737.60
E05	15.33	31,886.40	15.66	32,572.80	15.98	33,238.40	16.34	33,987.20	16.72	34,777.60	17.09	35,547.20	17.47	36,337.60
E06	16.49	34,299.20	16.85	35,048.00	17.21	35,796.80	17.61	36,628.80	18.01	37,460.80	18.39	38,251.20	18.79	39,083.20
E07	17.74	36,899.20	18.14	37,731.20	18.55	38,584.00	18.95	39,416.00	19.37	40,289.60	19.82	41,225.60	20.24	42,099.20
E08	19.11	39,748.80	19.53	40,622.40	19.96	41,516.80	20.41	42,452.80	20.86	43,388.80	21.33	44,366.40	21.79	45,323.20
E09	20.60	42,848.00	21.04	43,763.20	21.50	44,720.00	21.99	45,739.20	22.46	46,716.80	22.98	47,798.40	23.47	48,817.60
E10	22.13	46,030.40	22.62	47,049.60	23.13	48,110.40	23.64	49,171.20	24.19	50,315.20	24.73	51,438.40	25.27	52,561.60
E11	25.67	53,393.60	26.26	54,620.80	26.83	55,806.40	27.44	57,075.20	28.08	58,406.40	28.70	59,696.00	29.29	60,923.20
E12	29.78	61,942.40	30.46	63,356.80	31.12	64,729.60	31.81	66,164.80	32.52	67,641.60	33.26	69,180.80	33.99	70,699.20
E13	34.56	71,884.80	35.36	73,548.80	36.10	75,088.00	36.92	76,793.60	37.72	78,457.60	38.57	80,225.60	39.42	81,993.60
E14	40.09	83,387.20	40.99	85,259.20	41.88	87,110.40	42.83	89,086.40	43.74	90,979.20	44.72	93,017.60	45.71	95,076.80
E15	46.47	96,657.60	47.51	98,820.80	48.57	101,025.60	49.66	103,292.80	50.74	105,539.20	51.89	107,931.20	53.03	110,302.40
E16	54.73	113,838.40	55.95	116,376.00	57.20	118,976.00	58.50	121,680.00	59.77	124,321.60	61.11	127,108.80	62.45	129,896.00
E17	64.50	134,160.00	65.94	137,155.20	67.39	140,171.20	68.91	143,332.80	70.44	146,515.20	72.01	149,780.80	73.60	153,088.00

EXHIBIT B
SCHEUDLE OF SALARY GRADES 2016
EXECUTIVE SERVICE CONTINUED

PAY	STEP 8		S	TEP 9	ST	ΓΕΡ 10	S	ΓΕΡ 11	S	ΓΕΡ 12	STEP 13	
GRADE	Hourly	Annual	Hourly	Annual								
E01	14.30	29,744.00	14.62	30,409.60	14.95	31,096.00	15.28	31,782.40	15.62	32,489.60	15.96	33,196.80
E02	15.01	31,220.80	15.35	31,928.00	15.70	32,656.00	16.03	33,342.40	16.40	34,112.00	16.77	34,881.60
E03	15.76	32,780.80	16.09	33,467.20	16.47	34,257.60	16.82	34,985.60	17.20	35,776.00	17.61	36,628.80
E04	16.58	34,486.40	16.93	35,214.40	17.31	36,004.80	17.68	36,774.40	18.08	37,606.40	18.48	38,438.40
E05	17.85	37,128.00	18.24	37,939.20	18.66	38,812.80	19.06	39,644.80	19.49	40,539.20	19.91	41,412.80
E06	19.22	39,977.60	19.65	40,872.00	20.08	41,766.40	20.50	42,640.00	20.97	43,617.60	21.43	44,574.40
E07	20.71	43,076.80	21.17	44,033.60	21.63	44,990.40	22.11	45,988.80	22.60	47,008.00	23.10	48,048.00
E08	22.27	46,321.60	22.78	47,382.40	23.29	48,443.20	23.80	49,504.00	24.34	50,627.20	24.88	51,750.40
E09	24.00	49,920.00	24.56	51,084.80	25.11	52,228.80	25.63	53,310.40	26.22	54,537.60	26.77	55,681.60
E10	25.85	53,768.00	26.39	54,891.20	26.98	56,118.40	27.58	57,366.40	28.21	58,676.80	28.82	59,945.60
E11	29.95	62,296.00	30.64	63,731.20	31.33	65,166.40	31.99	66,539.20	32.73	68,078.40	33.43	69,534.40
E12	34.77	72,321.60	35.50	73,840.00	36.30	75,504.00	37.12	77,209.60	37.96	78,956.80	38.79	80,683.20
E13	40.31	83,844.80	41.22	85,737.60	42.15	87,672.00	43.05	89,544.00	44.00	91,520.00	44.99	93,579.20
E14	46.74	97,219.20	47.75	99,320.00	48.82	101,545.60	49.92	103,833.60	51.03	106,142.40	52.15	108,472.00
E15	54.21	112,756.80	55.40	115,232.00	56.65	117,832.00	57.90	120,432.00	59.20	123,136.00	60.48	125,798.40
E16	63.87	132,849.60	65.26	135,740.80	66.73	138,798.40	68.20	141,856.00	69.73	145,038.40	71.29	148,283.20
E17	75.25	156,520.00	76.90	159,952.00	78.65	163,592.00	80.38	167,190.40	82.19	170,955.20	83.99	174,699.20